CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - DECEMBER 17, 2024

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on December 17, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the
Multipurpose Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite
525, Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Charles Goft, Assistant City Manager
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Amber Pollan, Planner — Strategic Planning
Aaron Zilz, Planner 11
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of December 3, 2024.

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Commissioner Bohnsack seconded the Motion. Motion passed 4-0.

CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan
Commission and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the
Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

2. Replat — Main Central Addition, Lot 1A, Block A, Lot 1, Block B, Lot 1, Block D, & Lot 1,
Block E: Consider and act on a request for a replat of Lot 1 and 4, Block A, of the Main Central
Addition to create new lots, abandon easements, and dedicate new easements for a multifamily
project. The 17.47-acre tract is located north of W. Main Street and east of N. Central
Expressway. Owner: SAF 100 N Central Land Ltd, SAF 100 N Central Ltd and Richardson
Gateway LLC. Staff: Aaron Zilz.



2

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Commissioner Roberts seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

3. Zoning File 24-30 Special Permit — Mesorah High School for Girls: Consider and act
on a request for approval of a Special Permit for a private school on a 3.5-acre lot
currently zoned O-M Office located within an existing 23,512 square foot building at
2101 Waterview Parkway, on the west side of Waterview Parkway, south of Tatum
Street. Owner: Mesorah CHAI, LLC. Staff: Derica Peters.

Derica Peters advised the request is for approval of a Special Permit for a private school,
Mesorah High School for Girls, within an existing 23,000 square-foot single story office building
on a 3.5-acre lot currently zoned O-M Office at 2101 Waterview Parkway. The city requires a
special permit for private schools unless it is directly associated with a church or a property that
functions primarily as a church.

Ms. Peters indicated the subject property has one (1) driveway entrance on Jonsson Blvd, and
one (1) driveway located on Waterview Parkway. An updated Traffic Management Plan will be
provided by the applicant every year by December 1% for review and re-assessment.

Ms. Peters stated the zoning ordinance prohibits fences from extending past the front wall of a
building, therefore applicant is requesting an exception to allow a new 8-foot-tall tubular steel
fence around the perimeter to provide a closed and secured campus. The applicant provided two
options for the fence location, however one of them has the fence located on the northern portion
of the property that is encumbered by mutual access easements. The alternate fence layout option
shows the fence closer to the building and located on the interior of the mutual access easements.
The gates will be open for drop-off and pick-up times then closed and locked during school and
after school hours.

Ms. Peters reported a storm shelter facility will be added to comply with the current International
Building Code requirements for a new school. The City does not have a required parking ratio
for schools, however a total of 195 parking spaces are provided on site.

Ms. Peters stated that a condition for the Special Permit was added to the packet that states a
maximum of 120 students attend the school per day and that number may change in the future.
No correspondence has been received for this request.

Chairman Marsh asked which site plan showing the fence location is the one being considered.

Ms. Peters stated the fence location is not definite, the condition will allow them to have a fence
in the front of the property and give them some flexibility of placement.

Chairman Marsh asked to clarify that the concept plan is not tied to a specific option for the
fence, and it could be either or something completely different.

Ms. Peters said that is correct.



Chairman Marsh asked what staff thought of the location of the storm shelter being on Jonsson
Blvd versus being placed on the east or south side of the building.

Ms. Peters advised staff is okay with that location if more landscaping is provided.
Mr. Goff clarified there are travel distance requirements to the storm shelter that may have
influenced exactly where it would be placed. There were also some utilities and easements on the

site that restricted where it could be located.

Commissioner Costantino noted that the condition for the limitation of 120 students was not in
the motion summary and asked if it was added after the fact.

Ms. Peters said yes it was added after staff looked at conditions in other private schools that were
recently approved so it is an option to include the condition.

Mr. Goff advised that it is up to the Planning Commission as to how much control the city has
over a maximum enrollment number and Applicant can come back if wanting to exceed that
enrollment. It would be up to staff whether the surrounding infrastructure could support the
maximum enrollment and if any changes were needed for the queuing, pick-up, or drop-off times
for distribution.

Commissioner Costantino asked if staff knows the current enrollment of Chicago Nursing or
enrollment number for ITT and he asked to confirm that the applicant would submit a new traffic
analysis yearly.

Ms. Peters stated the applicant needs to provide a new traffic analysis each year and she does not
have the enrollment number of the other schools.

Chairman Marsh asked if 195 was the number of parking spaces before or after the storm shelter.
Ms. Peters answered it was after the storm shelter.

Commissioner Roberts asked if there are regulations for distance from the egress door to the
storm shelter, would someone have to open the gate.

Ms. Peters said that someone would have to open the gate, or they need a pedestrian gate.
Commission Roberts asked what the regulations said about the distance.

Mr. Goff advised that detail would be decided on in the building permit phase.

Chairman Marsh asked where the primary entrance was located.

Ms. Peters advised it was the entrance on the west side facing Jonsson Blvd.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions for staff, seeing none the public hearing
was opened and the applicant was asked to come forward.



4

Margot Murphy, Baldwin Associates and representing Mesorah School, 3904 Elm Street, Suite B,
Dallas stated the school currently operates at Park Central Blvd near the Watermark Church. Cars
will enter through a gate off Jonsson Blvd and be directed to the entrance of the school and will
turn back through parking lot to exit on Jonsson Blvd and will need to take a right turn for the exit.
Mesorah School currently has 66 students. A traffic engineer was used to study the effect of traffic
on site, and reported traffic would be minimal due to families carpooling and having few student
drivers. The traffic management plan will govern traffic operations and will be updated yearly.
She stated there are 208 existing parking spaces. She asked if the enrollment cap be larger than the
120 proposed.

Ms. Murphy pointed out that an information letter was sent to all property owners within notice
area and sent an invitation inviting them to a community meeting. No one attended the meeting or
made any inquiries regarding the project.

Chairman Marsh asked why they need a fence around the school.

Ms. Murphy informed that security is an issue for this community and there are many places of
worship with schools that have security fencing. Mesorah hired a consultant through the Jewish
Federation that recommended a six-foot fence and to secure as much of the perimeter as possible.

Chairman Marsh asked why the fence did not include any of the property on the east side of the
building.

Ms. Murphy said there is proposed fencing on the east side of the building that will be considered
as phase two due to the expense of fencing.

Chairman Marsh stated he did not see the proposed fence on any of the concept plans and asked if
the plan was to extend it all the way to Waterview Parkway.

Ms. Murphy stated they did submit a proposal for a fence along the entire perimeter of the property
but talked to staff about needing to job the fence line forward to accommodate the trees.

Mr. Goff stated the fencing be the same on the east side that is on the west side providing flexibility
if things should change operationally.

Chairman Marsh stated it impacts the appearance of the property with how it will look along
Waterview Parkway and asked if the fence was proposed to be against the sidewalk, edge of the
parking lot or right at the property line.

Dale Rhodes, Architect for Applicant, 1776 Preston Road, Suite 210, Dallas noted that the plan
says proposed future fence. He explained the school is applying for a federal grant through the
Department of Homeland Security to pay for the fence. The idea is to buy as much fence with the
initial grant and then reapply for a second grant to finish out the fence in the front area. Security
Consultants from the Jewish Federation said the fence would have a vehicular gate and stay ten
feet in front of the property line. This allows plenty of tree clearance and then resumes a proximity
to the property line with only a portion that fronts Waterview Parkway.

Chairman Marsh asked for more information about the placement of the storm shelter.



5

Mr. Rhodes commented they looked at several different locations with the preferred location being
where there is a utility easement.

Chairman Marsh asked if any locations on the east side were considered.

Mr. Rhodes replied, no, the reason why is because the school is primarily interested in using the
west side of the building as their primary center of operations.

Chairman Marsh asked what materials the shelter is constructed from.

Mr. Rhodes said it meets requirements of the IBC 500 codes for missile testing but it is basically
a painted steel structure.

Chairman Marsh asked if they had a request for changing the student enrollment number, what
would it be.

Ms. Murphy stated the enrollment at the current school is 276 and traffic seems to be very
acceptable at that level so a number between 120-276, but they would be amendable to a number
around 200-225.

Chairman Marsh asked about number of teachers.

Ms. Murphy replied, it may be as many as 20.

Chairman Marsh said the idea of going higher in enrollment may be an issue if there are only 195
parking spaces, but it was mentioned that a lot of the students carpool.

Ms. Murphy said yes, a good number of students carpool, and there are only a handful of student
drivers. There is a lot of excess parking at the site.

Chairman Marsh asked if the occupancy is determined by the Fire Marshall.
Ms. Peters confirmed that it is addressed in the fire and building code.

Chairman Marsh stated even if it was an office use, occupancy could not be determined at this
time, so there are no other guidelines, other than potentially state licensing maximum occupancy.

Ms. Murphy mentioned if occupancy increased then the storm shelter would need to accommodate
all students.

Seeing no more speakers, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing.
Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Mr. Costantino commented that an updated traffic management plan update would guide
enrollment limitations, and he asked City staff if they preferred limitation.



6

Mr. Goff stated if enrollment expanded and the storm shelter had to expand, and if they were to
make modifications to the exterior of the building, then they would need to come back for another
special permit to amend the concept plan.

Commissioner Roberts asked staff what the student population was for ITT.

Mr. Goff answered they did not have that number.

Commissioner Roberts commented he thought it would probably be higher than this proposal.

Chairman Marsh stated he was concerned about the visual impact of the storm shelter on Jonsson
Blvd, it would look like an industrial area, and he thought an alternate location would be better.

Ms. Peters commented that additional landscaping will be place in that buffer to screen the shelter.

Chairman Marsh stated he was concerned about how close the proposed fence will go to
Waterview Parkway and asked that they pull it back about 10 feet.

Commissioner Costantino commented he did not think the location of the shelter would be an
1SSue.

Ms. Murphy stated the storm shelter will be located behind mature trees, a raised berm, and with
the additional landscape added there would be robust landscaping so it would be hard to see the

storm shelter from Jonsson.

Chairman Marsh asked why you couldn’t put it on the east side of the building and out of the
public view.

Ms. Murphy replied that the school is using the west side as its main entrance.

Chairman Marsh asked if there will be an emergency exit on the east side of the building.

Mr. Rhodes responded the main entrance on the east side of the building is not planned to be
utilized at this time, but it will be available as part of the life safety plan. Their intent is to use the
bottom 2/3 of the building right now, so if enrollment increases, the will be able to utilize some of
that space.

Chairman Marsh commented it would look better to bring the shelter closer to the building, but it
may not be feasible.

Mr. Rhodes commented that they preferred it to be on the side of the less traveled street.

Chairman Marsh suggested that on the east side at least it would not be right up on the street.

Commissioner Costantino mentioned that Jonsson Blvd is heavily wooded and there is a natural
rise in the berm that would also camouflage the shelter.

Chairman Marsh asked if they knew the height of the storm shelter.



Mr. Rhodes said it was probably a maximum of 8 feet tall.

Chairman Marsh responded that it still is potentially visible from Jonsson. Also, he was not
concerned about the enrollment limitations, as there is ample parking.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to recommend approval of the request as
presented including items 1) A-E. Commissioner Bohnsack seconded the
motion. Motion passed 4-0.

4. Zoning File 24-21 PD Planned Development- Lennox Innovation R&D Center:
Consider and act on a request to rezone approximately 7.52-acres from O-M Office with
special conditions to PD Planned Development for the O-M Office District with amended
development standards to accommodate the development of a 45,000-square foot research
and development building at 2140 Lake Park Boulevard, on the north side of Lake Park
Boulevard, east of Lake Park Way. Owner: Lennox International Inc. Staff: Derica Peters.

Derica Peters advised the request is a continuation of the October 3, 2024, public hearing of the
request to rezone approximately 7.52 acres from O-M Office with special conditions to PD
Planned Development for the O-M Office District with amended development standard to
accommodate the development of a 45,000-square foot research and development building. The
property to the South is zoned Office O, to the north Residential -City of Dallas, to the east Patio
Home District Planned Development and to the west are Townhomes.

Ms. Peters stated there are four components to the request that includes a request to allow the use
of a research and lab facility, a request pertaining to the height of the new building, a request to a
reduction in parking and a request for a difference in the residential screening requirement. The
proposed use is a research lab and facility which is allowed in Office base zoning district but was
not listed in this district because the zoning of this district pre-dated that term or use being
incorporated into the CZO. Staff believes the use was not listed in the ordinance because this
ordinance predated the zoning code which did incorporate research and lab facilities in the
1990’s.

Ms. Peters reported that after the applicant engaged in public outreach efforts with the
community, the concept plan they presented at the October 3, 2024, hearing was modified. The
concept plan shows the site area is 7.5 acres where the applicant is proposing a 45,000 square
foot building with 10,000 square feet being set aside for office and the remainder of the building
will be constructed like a warehouse. The proposed changes include shifting the building 18 feet
to accommodate the landscape buffer on the west side of the building and the loading docks have
been reconfigured. The allowed building height is limited to one story according to the
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and not to exceed 25 feet if it is within 150 feet of a
residential development, however, applicant is requesting an exception to allow a 36-foot single
story structure.

Ms. Peters continued stating additional landscape will be provided and landscape islands have
been added to the parking row to the west of the property. In addition, they have added parking
to the north property line and along that parking row they have added landscape islands to
provide some visual screening for the properties to the north. Ms. Peters advised that some of the



parking was adjusted, therefore the applicant is requesting a reduction to the parking minimum.
The City does not have a parking standard for research and lab facilities so the parking standard
for warehousing was used. The parking requirements for a warehouse facility of this size, in
addition to the existing office building on-site, would require 830 parking spaces. However, 601
parking spaces are provided on site and applicant said the number is adequate.

Ms. Peters explained the applicant is requesting an exception to residential screening to allow the
wooden fence to the north in lieu of masonry screening wall. Also, offsite to the west is the 6-
foot-tall wrought iron fence and shrub row that went in at the time the townhomes were
developed. The boulevard running down the center of the site has narrowed from 48 feet across
to 24 feet across to accommodate the building shifting to the east. The expected maximum
number of employees at this facility is 62 with the majority working a daily shift from 9:00 am to
3:00 pm. Large trucks with a flatbed trailer are expected to make deliveries one to two (1-2)
times per week.

Ms. Peters stated two of the loading areas will be enclosed and a loading dock ramp that will be
screened by a masonry wall. The future land use plan in the updated Envision Richardson
Comprehensive plan calls for this area to be innovation industry.

Ms. Peters advised that at the October 3, 2024, public hearing they received two pieces of
correspondence opposed to the request and seven people spoke in opposition at that meeting.
Recently we have received three letters in opposition; two letters of support were received, and
one is before you from the local HOA president.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was any truck turning radius measurements applied on the
interior loading docks at the northwest corner on the west side.

Ms. Peter stated applicant’s architect may have applied that measurement to confirm.
Chairman Marsh asked if the exterior dock was just a ramp to a dock.

Ms. Peters clarified the ramp is located behind the screening wall.

Chairman Marsh asked how the flatbed trailers would pull up to the dock.

Ms. Peters responded that the applicant could clarify.

Chairman Marsh asked if the masonry wall in the picture that looks like wood is precast
concrete.

Ms. Peters said that is correct and it sits on top of a retaining wall of variable height.
Chairman Marsh asked if the number of parking spaces was reduced.

Ms. Peters confirmed it went down by 30 spaces that were lost by adding additional landscape
islands and shifting the building over to the east. There is also parking spots currently north of

the parking garage that the applicant has proposed to remove and readjust the fire lane and add
landscaping so they can preserve the existing line of trees.



Chairman Marsh asked to confirm that the Lake Park Estates were across the street.
Ms. Peters confirmed yes.
Commissioner Roberts asked to confirm that the plans allow an office building by-right.

Ms. Peters clarified the concept plan does not show a building there and since there is such a
detailed concept plan, they would not be able to build the building without an amendment.

Commissioner Roberts said it was mentioned the ordinance was modified since the other
buildings were built and was amended to include research labs.

Ms. Peters stated the code was amended to allow the use of research labs, but a building in this
exact location would not be allowed as of now for any type of use.

Commissioner Roberts asked if staff has the definition of research and lab.
Ms. Peters read the definition from the Code.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions for staff, seeing none the public hearing
was opened and the applicant was asked to come forward.

John Hurst, Lennox Vice President of Government Affairs and Sustainability, 2140 Lake Park
Blvd, Richardson made a presentation on the background and history of development in the area.

Mr. Hurst stated at the October 3™ meeting they heard concerns about traffic, noise, emissions and
visual screening and asked to defer to December 17 to engage in outreach which they did by
meeting virtually and in person with the surrounding associations of Parkside Towns, University
World HOA President, Savory Trace, Savoy Landing and University Place.

Mr. Hurst summarized the meeting with neighbors, and described the changes to the concept plan,
which included to move the proposed building 18 feet to the east to preserve existing and add
screening to the west, move recycle material bins and trailer dock inside the structure, add trees to
north side and along entire west wall of building, and add landscape islands between parking
spaces. Other changes to the site will include in the east alley the generator will have a new sound
barrier, signage to be posted for delivery time 7 am-5 pm, will work with the City to post no
parking / no staging signs on Tatum Road, and they will continue to work with tenants and vendors
to modify their delivery times. The proposed lighting plan will incorporate a balance of light spill,
security, and safety measures with additional security cameras on the perimeter of new building.

Commissioner Costantino asked how big the equipment is to be tested.

Mr. Hurst replied that they are the size of a VW bus or small car, 25 feet in length and 50 inches
tall is the largest.

Commissioner Roberts asked the applicant to speak to the opposition concerning this being an
industrial use.



10

Mr. Hurst responded to say it was not an industrial use because they do not manufacture anything
in the facility.

Commissioner Roberts asked if they were going to address noise pollution.

Mr. Hurst replied cars are cars and construction is construction but once it is finished the noise is
lowered and will not hear the testing from outside, and the recycle bins are moved inside to
alleviate noise.

Chairman Roberts stated that another opposition point is the large industrial size trucks.

Mr. Hurst responded that there will be a crane system built inside to move equipment into the test
area. Trucks will be backed into facility and leave trailer inside.

Commissioner Roberts asked if their use of forklifts would be propane or electric.

Mr. Hurst stated that time to time they may use a forklift. Primary movement is the crane system.
There will be a combination of both electric and gas.

Commissioner Roberts asked if they were going to use a certain type of shrub.

Mr. Hurst stated they spoke with the Baskinds and agreed to rely on a professional arborist for
landscape screening solutions.

Commissioner Roberts commented they are replacing a lot of green space with a facility so there
will probably be an environmental impact.

Mr. Hurst stated they have done a level one environmental impact study that will be part of the
construction process.

Commissioner Roberts asked staff if he was correct in saying there will be a drainage study on a
new building.

Aaron Zilz responded that the Development Services Department will review civil plans to make
sure there is no excess environmental impacts.

Chairman Marsh asked about the truck turning radius and if there has been a study to prove it
works.

Mr. Ric Ruiz, BRW Architects, 409 Grace Drive, Richardson 75081, as far an official parking
study he looked at the radius and based on experience in backing the truck in, the project is still
under schematic design, but they do have enough room to make a hammerhead turning radius for
the purpose of this study. There is sufficient space to have a large vehicle or fire truck come in
back into that space and then pull back out. They are still conducting a study and once they have
civil on board, the study will be completed.



11

Chairman Marsh stated a crane system was mentioned to be inside the building along with the
loading docks, but do you anticipate using the exterior covered loading dock when items come in
on a flatbed truck.

Mr. Hurst answered yes, if the two inside bays are full of trailers, they wanted to have another
option so a truck would not have to stage to the north or west of the building. They do not anticipate
using that loading dock with the removable railing, as the desire is to push as many deliveries into
that enclosed area as possible.

Chairman Marsh stated at the last meeting there was feedback about the existing Lennox building
loading dock and trash pickup. Has anything been done to address those concerns.

Mr. Hurst we are not the only tenant in that building so we are working with sub-tenants and their
vendors to modify delivery times. Once they are sole tenants of the campus then they will have
more control over those items. The delivery time for Amazon cannot be controlled.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were previous amendments to the deed covenants.

Mr. Hurst replied those were made collectively by members of University World HOA. Lennox
currently holds 23-24% of the weight of the vote in that HOA. Also, the meetings with that HOA
have been productive.

With no more questions for the applicant, Chairman Marsh asked if anyone would like to come
forward and speak in favor or opposition to the request.

Dr. Allen Baskind, 2230 Hibiscus Avenue, Richardson homeowner of Parkside Towns, said he
was speaking on behalf of the residents who are opposed to light industrial activity such as this.
Lennox and the consultants have been responsive, but he has concerns with the issues this may
cause long term and that R&D is too broad a term. The City should place long term guardrails
around a residential area. He described how a lab is equipped and forklifts will cause concern
including noise. Visually, they would like Lennox to consider a thick hedge nellie stevens to screen
the loading dock and forklift areas.

Cliff Wood, 8226 Vitex Avenue, Dallas, wanted to commend the applicant for their efforts. He
stated he would like the screening and trees to be written into the ordinance. The tree mitigation is
significant so he requests the method for mitigation be in-kind, and if that could be allocated to
perimeter planning for screening, he also requested to limit deliveries and trash pickup between
hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.

Brenda Bailey, 2209 London Avenue, Richardson, states her residence faces the loading dock on
the east side of the property and they have experienced early morning deliveries, also, this
neighborhood seems to be tightly developed, and Jonsson Blvd is a disaster.

Mohammed Khanani, 8202 Vitex Avenue, Dallas, asks why the City would consider a zoning
change for this property to be industrial. The use for an office building is different, and a single
story shouldn’t be 36-feet high. They are allowing 18-wheelers and large trucks to make deliveries
and the City has no control over this and it creates more accidents. He is concerned about the



12

children in the neighborhood, and it would be better for the City to buy the property and make a
playground.

Tomer Lankri, 17107 Texas Pistache, Dallas, spoke in opposition to say that his property faces the
subject property and was built elevated above the subject site. The parking lot is narrow and
frequently occupied, there is not enough room for trucks to maneuver. He stated this is a highly
condensed residential area, and an approval to the request would deteriorate their lives and
livelihoods.

Brandy Nolan, 1123 Sunset Lane, Richardson mentioned she submitted photos, videos, and a
comment card in advance. She has lived to the east of Lennox for the past 8 years and she hears
noise behind her neighborhood and directly affect the use and enjoyment of her home. In her
experience she has concerns about Lennox fulfilling their commitment to mitigate these issues.
She requests Lennox fulfill commitments made at outreach meetings, including to supply
construction contact information and a schedule, and a sound barrier around existing generators.

David Rubin 8010 Copper Way, board member, echoed previous comments, and added large A/C
units and disposal of refrigerant is overlooked. The existing Lennox R& D facility is not near
homes. There are several schools and homes in this surrounding area, so there is no longer room
to build something as big as this, and deliveries cannot be guaranteed to be mitigated reasonably.

Mr. Hurst responded the screening will be addressed by developing a comprehensive plan with a
landscape architect, there is a lot of traffic, but some is due to the Coit Road construction which at
this time diverts traffic to Waterview and he anticipates this will alleviate once construction is
over. They are going to educate employees on traffic safety, there are currently cranes onsite
because they are replacing the roof on their thirty-year-old building. He stated as part of the capital
expenditure of this project it would include a sound barrier for the generator on the east, and they
would sign a good neighbor agreement to meet concerns.

Chairman Marsh asked applicant to explain their selection of this location.

Mr. Hurst explained as technology innovators they need a space they can showcase their products
and facilities and having the site on the same campus as the office fosters collaboration.

Chairman Marsh asked about sound continuation on the east side.

Mr. Hurst replied that it was placed there when the tower was built in 1999 and is currently
enclosed by a wooden fence and would be replaced with a hard surface, masonry type wall.

Chairman Marsh asked for more description on the generator used for this facility.
Mr. Hurst explained the generator will be to run computers and will be enclosed by a parapet on
the roof and is natural gas.

Chairman Marsh asked for his understanding of how this is not a light industrial use.

Mr. Hurst responded that there is a specific definition for both.



13

Seeing no more speakers, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing.
Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Commissioner Bohnsack asked how many employees will be in this building and asked for more
information on deliveries.

Mr. Hurst stated there will be 40 employees, shipments will be on a controlled schedule since they
are coordinating with their own facilities deliveries, and he pointed to the diagram to show the

deliveries arrive from Waterview to the east and exit to Coit Rd to the west.

Chairman Marsh commented that the office district typically allows this use, however this location
has special conditions that omitted this use in the office category.

Ms. Peters confirmed that is correct, and she went on to describe the difference between industrial
and other commercial uses which is manufacturing, warehousing, and distribution.

Chairman Marsh asked the applicant if any other modifications will be added after these
discussions and concerns heard tonight.

Mr. Hurst replied that he believes they have addressed all raised concerns.

Chairman Marsh asked if Lennox was agreeable to shrubs like nellie stevens on the west side of
the building.

Mr. Hurst responded that they are amendable to maximum screening at that location.

Commissioner Roberts asked if the City knew the background as to why this use was included in
the zoning district.

Ms. Peters responded to say they didn’t have a history on this amendment, but it occurred in the
1990s when technology businesses became more innovated and advanced and needed expanded
facilities for testing and development.

Commissioner Roberts asked what the City could do if the use transformed into a more intensive
use.

Mr. Goff responded that the City had the ability to follow up on issues through Code Enforcement
and will be aware of activities within the facility with regular Fire Marshal inspections.

Chairman Marsh asked if it would be feasible for the other uses listed, such as office and hotel, to
be allowed to be constructed at this location.

Mr. Goff clarified that those uses are allowed but the concept plan must also be amended to depict
the building.

Chairman Marsh asked for clarification on the floor area ratio standards and how they compare to
the typical office standards.



14

Ms. Pollan confirmed that they are less dense, as indicated on the concept plan exhibit.

Chairman Marsh commented on the improvements made to screening and landscaping, moving
loading docks to the interior, and he understands the frustrations of neighbors.

Commissioner Roberts commented that our region grows by 120,000 new residents every year and
traffic has become an issue everywhere, and they will be taking steps to mitigate concerns with
the neighbors, however this is a tough decision because he believes the property values will take a
hit and he thinks Lennox has the financial means to take more steps.

Chairman Marsh responded to say that it is not proved that Lennox wouldn’t take a financial hit
from a decision, and the Lennox development was there before the residences. He can come down
to weighing out property rights.

Commissioner Roberts responded to say that having a research building here will generate more
issues and isn’t appropriate at this location.

Commissioner Costantino stated that aside from the issue with the use, the main request is the
height of the building, and they shouldn’t consider the means but whether this is appropriate in the
neighborhood or not.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to recommend approval of the request as

presented. Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 3-1
(Commissioner Roberts opposed).

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular business
meeting at 9:36 p.m.

Bryan Marsh, Chairman



